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PART 1. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1. Condensed Financial Statements
BIODRAIN MEDICAL, INC.
(ADEVELOPMENT STAGE COMPANY)
CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS
(Unaudited)

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expense and other assets
Restricted cash in escrow (See Note 4)
Total Current Assets

Fixed assets, net
Intangibles, net

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' DEFICIT

Current Liabilities:

Current portion of long term debt (See Note 8)

Current portion of convertible debt

Accounts payable

Shares due investors under registration payment arrangement
Accrued expenses

Convertible debenture

Total Current Liabilites

Long term debt and convertible debt, net of discounts of $123,628 and $44,873 (See Note 7 and 8)
Liability for equity-linked financial instruments (See Note 10)

Stockholders Deficit:

Common stock, $.01 par value, 80,000,000 authorized, 13,573,719 and 11,383,211 outstanding
Additional paid-in capital

Deficit accumulated during development stage

Total Shareholder' Deficit

Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Deficit

See Notes to Condensed Financial Statements
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September 30, December 31,

2010 2009
$ 20434 S 16,632
y 15,737

10,494 3,801

- 103,333

30,928 139,503

7438 9,260

141,532 141,532

$ 179,899 § 290,295
$ 13,925 § 13,620
50,000 50,000
1,128,367 814,137

- 355,124

384,325 201,490

X 10,000

1,576,617 1,444 371
518,371 116,108
134,943 1,071,847
135,737 113,831
4,799,777 3,573,506
(6,985,548) (6,029,368)
(2,050,034) (2,342,031)

$ 179,899 $ 290,295




CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Revenue

Cost of goods sold

Gross margin

General and administrative expense
Operations expense

Sales and marketing expense
Interest expense

Loss (gain) on valuation of equity-linked financial
instruments

Total expense
Net income (loss) available to common shareholders
Loss per common share basic and diluted

Weighted average shares used in computation, basic and
diluted

BIODRAIN MEDICAL, INC.

(ADEVELOPMENT STAGE COMPANY)

(Unaudited)
Period From
April 23,2002
(Inception)
Three Months Ended September, Nine Months Ended September, To September 30,
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010
$ - - 8 288 § 15,737  § 16,025
- - 140 7,450 7,140
- - 148 8,287 8,885
381,053 521,532 1,531,669 1,393,072 5,560,096
55,649 156,523 165,308 351,449 1,066,182
36,415 136,220 177,065 344,723 633,241
33,873 24,689 107,580 64,009 397,220
(348,880) (65,949) (1,025,294) 370,474 (662,306)
158,110 773,015 956,328 2,523,727 6,994,433
$ (158,110) $ (773,015) § (956,180) § (2,515,440) $ (6,985,548)
$ 0.01) $ 0.08) $ (0.08) $ 0.28) $ (2.12)
13,159,639 9,634,828 12,428,401 8,903,119 3,287,557

See Notes to Condensed Financial Statements
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BIODRAIN MEDICAL, INC.
(ADEVELOPMENT STAGE COMPANY)

STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT
PERIOD FROM APRIL 23,2002 (INCEPTION)

Issuance of common stock 9/1/02,$.0167 (1)

Issuance of common 10/23/02, $1.67/share
Net loss
Balance 12/31/02

Issuance of common 2/12/03,8.0167 (2)
Issuance of common 6/11&12.,$1.67 (3)
Net Loss

Balance 12/31/03

Issuance of common 5/25/04,8.0167 (4)
Net Loss

Balance 12/31/04

Issuance of common 12/14/05,$.0167 (5)
Vested stock options and warrants

Net Loss

Balance 12/31/05

Issuance of common 5/16 & 8/8,$.0167 (6)
Issuance of common 10/19 & 23,$.0167 (7)
Issuance of common 12/01,$1.67 (8)
Vested stock options and warrants

Net Loss

Balance 12/31/06

Issuance of common 1/30/07 @ 1.67 (9)
Value of equity instruments issued with debt
Capital contributions resulting from waivers of debt
Vested stock options and warrants

Net loss

Balance 12/31/07

Issuance of common 6/11 to 9/30,$.35 (10)
Shares issued to finders, agents
Shares issued to pay direct legal fees
Issuance of common due to antidilution provisions
Shares issued to pay investor relations services 6/23/08,$.35
Vested stock options and warrants
Capital contributions resulting from waivers of debt
Net loss
Balance 12/31/08

Cumulative effect of adoption of EITF 07-5
Vested stock options and warrants
Shares issued 3/20/09 to pay for fund raising
Shares issued under PMM in April 2009, $.50
Shares issued under PPM in May 2009, $.50
Shares issued under PPM in June 2009, $.50
Shares issued under PPM in August 2009, $.50
Shares issued under PPM in September 2009, $.50
Shares issued to directors, management and consultant in August 2009, $.50
Shares issued to finder in September 2009, $.50
Capital contributions resulting from waivers of debt
Value of equity-linked financial instruments issued in connection with PPMs
Value of equity instruments issued with debt
Shares issued to consultant for fund raising
Shares issued under PPM in November 2009, $.50
Shares issued upon conversion of debt and interest, $.27
Shares issued upon conversion of shareholder note, $.35
Net Loss
Balance 12/31/09

Shares issued in March 2010 under PPM, $.50
Shares issed to consultants for IR and consulting, $.50
Vested stock options and warrants
Value of equity instruments issued for consulting services
Value of equity-linked financial instruments issued
in connection with PPM in first quarter
Shares issued in April 2010 under PPM, $.50
Shares issed in May 2010 to consultant, $.50
Shares issued in May 2010 to 2008 investors as a penalty
for late registration 0f 4,552,862 shares, $.50
Value of equity instruments issued with debt in second quarter
Value of equity-linked financial instruments issued
in connection with PPM in second quarter
Value of equity-linked financial instruments issued
in connection with PPM in third quarter
Value of equity instruments issued with debt in third quarter
Shares issued in September 2010 under PPM, $.10
Shares issued to consultants in third quarter at $.22 per share
Net Loss
Balance 9/30/2010

(1) Founders shares, 1,000,000 pre-split

TO SEPTEMBER 30,2010
Shares Amount Paid in Capital Deficit Total
598,549 $ 5,985 $ 4,015 - $ 10,000
2,993 30 4970 5,000
(51,057) (51,057)
601,542 $ 6,015 $ 8,985 (51,057) § (36,057)
23,942 239 161 400
21,548 216 34,784 35,000
(90,461) (90,461)
647,032 $ 6,470 $ 43930 (141,518) $ 91,118)
6,567 66 44 110
(90,353) (90,353)
653,599 $ 6,536 $ 43,974 (231871) $ (181,361)
14,964 150 100 250
2,793 2,793
(123.852) (123.852)
668,563 $ 6,686 $ 46,867 (355,723) § (302,170)
86,869 869 582 1,451
38,906 389 261 650
28,739 287 44,523 44810
13,644 13,644
(273,026) (273.026)
823,077 $ 8,231 $ 105,877 (628,749) § (514,641)
599 6 994 1,000
132,938 132,938
346,714 346,714
73,907 73,907
(752,415) (752,415)
823,676 $ 8,237 $ 660,430 (1,381,164) § (712,497)
4,552,862 45,528 1,547,974 1,593,502
2,012,690 20,127 (20,127) -
285,714 2,857 (2.857)
205,899 2,059 (2,059) -
250,000 2,500 85,000 87,500
354,994 354,994
129,684 129,684
(1,762,628) (1,762.628)
8,130,841  $ 81308  § 2,753,039 (3,143,792) (309,445)
(486,564) 6,654 (479.910)
111,835 111,835
125,000 1,250 (1250) -
700,000 7,000 343,000 350,000
220,000 2,200 107,800 110,000
50,000 500 24,500 25,000
80,000 800 39,200 40,000
150,000 1,500 73,500 75,000
797,810 7978 390,927 398,905
100,000 1,000 49,000 50,000
84,600 84,600
(222.296) (222,296)
30,150 30,150
30,000 300 (300) -
50,000 500 24,500 25,000
935,446 9,354 247,100 256,454
14,024 140 4,766 4,906
(2,892,230) (2,892,230)
11,383,121 113,830 3,573,507 (6,029,368) (2,342,030)
174,550 1,746 $ 85,529 $ 87,275
374,090 3,741 $ 183,304 $ 187,045
$ 11,382 $ 11,382
$ 354,602 $ 354,602
$ (25,553) $ (25,553)
180,000 1,800 $ 88,200 $ 90,000
12,850 129 $ 6,296 $ 6,425
710,248 7,102 $ 348,022 $ 355,124
$ 96,613 $ 96,613
$ (31332) $ (31,332)
$ (31,506) $ (31,506)
$ 15,553 $ 15,553
250,000 2,500 $ 22,500 $ 25,000
488,860 4,889 $ 102,660 $ 107,549
(956,180)  $ (956.180)
13,573,719 135737  § 4,199.777 (6.985,548)  $ (2.050,034)

(2) 23,492 (40,000 pre-split) shares valued at $.0167 per share as compensation for loan guarantees by management

(3) Investment including 670 shares issued as a 10% finders fee



(4) For payment of patent legal fees

(5) Compensation for loan guarantees by management
(6) For vendor contractual consideration

(7) Employment agreements

(8) Investment

(9) Conversion of convertible notes by management

See Notes to Condensed Financial Statements
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Cash flow from operating activities:

Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to
net cash used in operating activities:

Depreciation

Vested stock options and warrants

BIODRAIN MEDICAL, INC.
(ADEVELOPMENT STAGE COMPANY)
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Unaudited)

Equity instruments issued for management and consulting

Stock based registration payments
Conversion of accrued liabilites to capital

Amortization of debt discount

(Gain)Loss on valuation of equity-linked instruments

Changes in assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expense and other
Notes payable to shareholders
Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Net cash used in operating activities:

Cash flow from investing activities:

Purchase of fixed assets
Purchase of intangibles

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities:
Proceeds from long term and convertible debt

Principal payments on long term debt and convertible debt

Restricted cash in escrow

Accrued interest converted to stock

Issuance of common stock

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash
Cash at beginning of period
Cash at end of period

See Notes to Condensed Financial Statements
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April 23,
2002
Nine Months (Inception)
Ended September 30, To September 30,
2010 2009 2010
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(956,180) $ (2,515,440) $ (6,985,548)
1,822 2,434 5,783
11,382 150,544 568,535
655,621 398,905 1,192,026
- 355,124 355,124
- 84,600 560,998
33411 6,538 151,627
(1,025,294) 370,474 (662,306)
15,737 (15,737) -
(6,692) (2,895) (10,493)
- - (14,957)
314,228 188,916 1,128,366
182,835 (8,980) 384,326
(773,129) (985,517) (3,326,519)
- - (12,258)
- - (142,495)
- - (154,753)
582,000 - 1,021,505
(110,677) (10,124) (126,607)
103,333 -
- - 87,360
202,275 600,000 2,519,448
776,931 589,876 3,501,706
3,802 (395,641) 20,434
16,632 463,838 -
20,434 § 68,197 § 20,434




BIODRAIN MEDICAL, INC.
(ADEVELOPMENT STAGE COMPANY)
NOTES TO CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amounts presented at and for the three months and nine months ended September 30,2010 and
September 30,2009 are unaudited)

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Nature of Operations and Continuance of Operations

BioDrain Medical, Inc. (the "Company") was incorporated under the laws of the State of Minnesota in 2002. The Company is developing an environmentally
safe system for the collection and disposal of infectious fluids that result from surgical procedures and post-operative care.

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming the Company will continue as a going concern. The Company has suffered recurring
losses from operations and has a shareholders’ deficit. These factors raise substantial doubt about its ability to continue as a going concern. The financial
statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

Management hired an investment banker in February 2010 to raise an additional $3-$5 million in new equity. The banker has been unable to raise the
expected $500,000 by September 30,2010, but the Company has raised approximately $202,000 in equity and $582,000 in convertible debt in 2010 and is
planning to close on a larger round within the next 30 days. Although the Company's ability to raise this new capital is in substantial doubt it received
$725,000 through private placements of equity and convertible debt in 2009, and the Company's April 1,2009 510(k) clearance from the FDA to authorize
the Company to market and sell its FMS products is being received very positively. If the Company is successful in raising at least $3 million in new equity,
it will have sufficient capital to operate its business and execute its business plan for at least the next 12 months. If the Company raises the additional capital
by issuing additional equity securities, its shareholders could experience substantial dilution.

Recent Accounting Developments

Issued in January 2010, ASU Update 2010-06, Fair Value Measures and Disclosures, provides amendments to Topic 820 that will provide more robust
disclosures about (1) the different classes of assets and liabilities measured at fair value, (2) the valuation techniques and inputs used, (3) the activity in level
3 fair value measurements, and (4) the transfers between levels 1, 2, and 3. ASC Update 2010-06 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2010. The Company does not expect adoption of ASU Update 2010-06 to have a material effect to its financial statements or its disclosures.

Issued in October 2009, ASU Update 2009-13, Revenue Recognition Topic 605 - Multiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangements provides guidance for
separating consideration in multiple-deliverable arrangements. ASC Number 2009-13 is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after June 15, 2010. The
Company does not expect adoption of ASU Update 2009-13 to have a material effect on its financial statements.

Effective February 2010, the Company adopted ASU Update 20 10-09, Subsequent Events, which provides amendments to Topic 855 removing the
requirement for SEC filers to disclose the date through which an entity has evaluated subsequent events. The adoption of ASU Update 20 10-09 did not have
a significant impact on the Company's disclosures.

Valuation of Intangible Assets

We review identifiable intangible assets for impairment in accordance with SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets
(SFAS 144), whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Our intangible assets are currently solely the
costs of obtaining trademarks and patents. Events or changes in circumstances that indicate the carrying amount may not be recoverable include, but are not
limited to, a significant change in the medical device marketplace and a significant adverse change in the business climate in which we operate. If such
events or changes in circumstances are present, the undiscounted cash flows method is used to determine whether the intangible asset is impaired. Cash flows
would include the estimated terminal value of the asset and exclude any interest charges. If the carrying value of the asset exceeds the undiscounted cash
flows over the estimated remaining life of the asset, the asset is considered impaired, and the impairment is measured by reducing the carrying value of the
asset to its fair value using the discounted cash flows method. The discount rate utilized is based on management's best estimate of the related risks and return
at the time the impairment assessment is made.

Our accounting estimates and assumptions bear various risks of change, including the length of the current recession facing the United States, the expansion
of the slowdown in consumer spending in the U.S. medical markets despite the early expressed opinions of financial experts that the medical market would
not be as affected as other markets and failure to gain acceptance in the medical market.




The Company reviewed all other significant newly issued accounting pronouncements and determined they are either not applicable to its business or that no
material effect is expected on its financial position and results of operations.

Accounting Policies and Estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Presentation of Taxes Collected from Customers

Sales taxes are imposed on the Company’s sales to nonexempt customers. The Company collects the taxes from customers and remits the entire amounts to
the governmental authorities. The Company’s accounting policy is to exclude the taxes collected and remitted from revenues and expenses.

Shipping and Handling

Shipping and handling charges billed to customers are recorded as revenue. Shipping and handling costs are recorded within cost of goods sold on the
statement of operations.

Advertising

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. There were no advertising expenses in the three months ended September 30,2010 and September 30,2009 and
zero and $1,600 in the nine months ended September 30,2010 and 2009, respectively.

Research and Development

Research and development costs are charged to operations as incurred. Research and development costs were $10,000 and $34,000 in the three months and
nine months ended September 30,2010, respectively, and zero and $30,000 in the three months and nine months ended September 30, 2009, respectively.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue in accordance with the SEC’s Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 101, Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements, as
amended by Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104 (together, SAB 101), and ASC 605 Revenue Recognition.

Revenue is recognized when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred, the fee is fixed and determinable and collectability is
probable. Delivery is considered to have occurred upon either shipment of the product or arrival at its destination based on the shipping terms of the
transaction. The Company standard terms specify that shipment is FOB BioDrain and the Company will, therefore recognize revenue upon shipment in most
cases. This revenue recognition policy applies to shipments of the FMS units as well as shipments of cleaning solution kits. When these conditions are
satisfied, the Company recognizes gross product revenue, which is the price it charges generally to its customers for a particular product. Under the
Company’s standard terms and conditions there is no provision for installation or acceptance of the product to take place prior to the obligation of the
customer. The customer’s right of return is limited only to the Company’s standard warranty whereby the Company replaces or repairs, at its option, and it
would be very rare that the unit or significant quantities of cleaning solution kits may be returned. Additionally, since the Company buys both the FMS units
and cleaning solution kits from “turnkey” suppliers the Company would have the right to replacements from the suppliers if this situation should occur.

Receivables

Receivables are reported at the amount the Company expects to collect on balances outstanding at fiscal year end. The Company has determined there will
be no losses on balances outstanding at the nine months ended September 30,2010.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation of property and equipment is computed using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets. Estimated useful asset life by classification is as follows:

Years
Computers and office equipment 3
Fumniture and fixtures 8




Upon retirement or sale, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the balance sheet and the resulting gain or loss is reflected in
operations. Maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets consist of patent costs. These assets are not subject to amortization until the property patented is in production. The assets are reviewed for
impairment annually, and impairment losses, if any, are charged to operations when identified. No impairment losses have been identified by management.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with ASC 740- Income Taxes(“ASC 740”). Under ASC 740, deferred tax assets and liabilities are
determined based on the differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities and net operating loss and credit carry forwards
using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the differences are expected to impact taxable income. Valuation allowances are established when
necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the amounts expected to be realized. In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty
in Income Taxes” (“FIN 48”), which became effective for the Company beginning January 1,2007. FIN 48, now included within ASC 740, addresses how tax
benefits claimed or expected to be claimed on a tax return should be recorded in the financial statements. Under ASC 740, the tax benefit from an uncertain
tax position can be recognized only if it is more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained on examination by the taxing authorities, based on the
technical merits of the position. The tax benefits recognized in the financial statements from such a position are measured based on the largest benefit that
has a greater than fifty percent likelihood of being realized upon ultimate resolution. The Company has identified no income tax uncertainties.

Patents and Intellectual Property

The Company, in June 2008, completed and executed an agreement to secure exclusive ownership of the patent from an inventor, Marshall Ryan. Mr. Ryan
received a combination of cash and warrants, and he will receive a 4% royalty on FMS (the Product) sales for the life of the patent. At the signing of the
agreement, Mr. Ryan received $75,000 in exchange for the exclusive assignment of the patent. In addition, on June 30,2009, Mr. Ryan, through his Mid-
State Stainless, Inc. entity, was entitled to receive $100,000 as payment (currently recorded as an account payable with the Company) for past research and
development activities. Should Mr. Ryan be utilized in the future for additional product development activities, he will be compensated at a rate of ninety
five dollars (895.00) per hour.

Mr. Ryan also received a warrant, with immediate vesting, to purchase 150,000 shares of the Company's common stock at a price of $.35 per share. The
warrant has a term of five years, ending on June 30,2013 and is assigned a value of $28,060 using a Black-Scholes formula and this amount was expensed as
consulting expense in 2008 using a 5-year expected life, a 3.73% risk free interest rate, an expected 59% volatility and a zero dividend rate. Should there be a
change in control of the Company (defined as greater than 50% of the Company’s outstanding stock or substantially all of its assets being transferred to one
independent person or entity), Mr. Ryan will be owed a total of $2 million to be paid out over the life of the patent if the change in control occurs within 12
months of the first sale of the product; or $1 million to be paid out over the life of the patent if the change in control occurs between 12 and 24 months of the
first sale of the product; or $500,000 to be paid out over the life of the patent if the change in control occurs between 24 and 36 months of the first sale of the
product. There will be no additional payment if a change in control occurs more than 36 months after the first sale of the product.

Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated any subsequent events through the date of this filing. The Company does not believe there are subsequent events that require
disclosure.

Interim Financial Statements

The Company has prepared the unaudited interim financial statements and related unaudited financial information in the footnotes in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”) and the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”) for interim financial statements. These interim financial statements reflect all adjustments consisting of normal recurring accruals,
which, in the opinion of management, are necessary to present fairly the Company’s financial position, the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
interim periods. These interim financial statements should be read in conjunction with the annual financial statements and the notes thereto contained in the
Form 10-K filed with the SEC on March 31,2010. The nature of the Company’s business is such that the results of any interim period may not be indicative
of the results to be expected for the entire year.




NOTE 2 - DEVELOPMENT STAGE OPERATIONS

The Company was formed April 23,2002. Since inception to September 30,2010, 13,573,719 shares of common stock have been issued between par value
and $1.67. Operations since incorporation have been devoted to raising capital, obtaining financing, development of the Company’s product, and
administrative services.

NOTE 3 - STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT, STOCK OPTIONS AND WARRANTS

In connection with the financing completed in October 2008, the Company has effected two reverse stock splits, one on June 6,2008 and another on October
20,2008. In accordance with SAB Topic 4C, all stock options and warrants and their related exercise prices are stated at their post-reverse stock split values.

The Company has an equity incentive plan, which allows issuance of incentive and non-qualified stock options to employees, directors and consultants of
the Company, where permitted under the plan. The exercise price for each stock option is determined by the board of directors. Vesting requirements are
determined by the board of directors when granted and currently range from immediate to three years. Options under this plan have terms ranging from three
to ten years.

Accounting for share-based payment

Effective January 1,2006, the Company adopted SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-Based Payment (SFAS 123(R)) which replaced SFAS No. 123,
Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation (SFAS 123) and superseded Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees (APB 25), all now codified under ASC 718- Compensation-Stock Compensation (“ASC 718). Under ASC 718 stock-based employee
compensation cost is recognized using the fair value based method for all new awards granted after January 1,2006 and unvested awards outstanding at
January 1,2006. Compensation costs for unvested stock options and non-vested awards that were outstanding at January 1, 2006, are being recognized over
the requisite service period based on the grant-date fair value of those options and awards as previously calculated under SFAS 123 for pro forma disclosures,
using a straight-line method. We elected the modified-prospective method under which prior periods are not retroactively restated.

ASC 718 requires companies to estimate the fair value of stock-based payment awards on the date of grant using an option-pricing model or other acceptable
means. The Company uses the Black-Scholes option valuation model which requires the input of significant assumptions including an estimate of the
average period of time employees will retain vested stock options before exercising them, the estimated volatility of th Company's common stock price over
the expected term, the number of options that will ultimately be forfeited before completing vesting requirements, the expected dividend rate and the risk-
free interest rate. Changes in the assumptions can materially affect the estimate of fair value of stock-based compensation and, consequently, the related
expense recognized. The assumptions the Company uses in calculating the fair value of stock-based payment awards represent the Company's best estimates,
which involve inherent uncertainties and the application of management's judgment. As a result, if factors change and the Company uses different
assumptions, the Company's equity-based compensation expense could be materially different in the future.

Since the Company's common stock has no significant public trading history, and the Company has experienced no option exercises in its history, the
Company is required to take an alternative approach to estimating future volatility and estimated life and the future results could vary significantly from the
Company's estimates. The Company compiled historical volatilities over a period of 2-7 years of 15 small-cap medical companies traded on major exchanges
and 10 mid-range medical companies on the OTC Bulletin Board and combined the results using a weighted average approach. In the case of ordinary
options to employees the Company determined the expected life to be the midpoint between the vesting term and the legal term. In the case of options or
warrants granted to non-employees the Company estimated the life to be the legal term unless there was a compelling reason to make it shorter.

When an option or warrant is granted in place of cash compensation for services the Company deems the value of the service rendered to be the value of the
option or warrant. In most cases, however, an option or warrant is granted in addition to other forms of compensation and its separate value is difficult to
determine without utilizing an option pricing model. For that reason the Company also uses the Black-Scholes-Merton option-pricing model to value
options and warrants granted to non-employees, which requires the input of significant assumptions including an estimate of the average period the investors
or consultants will retain vested stock options and warrants before exercising them, the estimated volatility of the Company's common stock price over the
expected term, the number of options and warrants that will ultimately be forfeited before completing vesting requirements, the expected dividend rate and
the risk-free interest rate. Changes in the assumptions can materially affect the estimate of fair value of stock-based consulting and/or compensation and,
consequently, the related expense recognized.

Since the Company has limited trading history in its stock and no first-hand experience with how its investors and consultants have acted in similar
circumstances, the assumptions the Company uses in calculating the fair value of stock-based payment awards represent its best estimates, which involve
inherent uncertainties and the application of management's judgment. As a result, if factors change and the Company uses different assumptions, the
Company's equity-based consulting and interest expense could be materially different in the future.
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Valuation and accounting for options and warrants

The Company determines the grant date fair value of options and warrants using a Black-Scholes-Merton option valuation model based upon assumptions
regarding risk-free interest rate, expected dividend rate, volatility and estimated term. For grants during 2008, the Company used a 2.0 to 4.5% risk-free
interest rate, 0% dividend rate, 53-66% volatility and estimated term of 2.5 to 7.5 years. Values computed using these assumptions ranged from $.102 per
share to $.336 per share. Warrants or options awarded for services rendered are expensed over the period of service (normally the vesting period) as
compensation expense for employees or an appropriate consulting expense category for awards to consultants and directors. Warrants granted in connection
with a common equity financing are included in shareholders’ equity, provided that there is no re-pricing provision that requires they be treated as a liability
(See Note 10) and warrants granted in connection with a debt financing are treated as a debt discount and amortized using the interest method as interest
expense over the term of the debt. Warrants issued in connection with the $100,000 convertible debt that closed March 1,2007 created a debt discount of
$40,242 that is being amortized as additional interest over its 5-year term.

Warrants issued in connection with the $170,000 in convertible “bridge” debt that closed in July 2007 created a calculated debt discount of $92,700 that was
fully expensed over its loan term that matured April 30,2008. The Company issued $100,000 in convertible debt in October 2009 and issued a warrant, in
connection with the debt, for 200,000 shares of common stock at $.65 per share. The Company determined that the warrant had an initial value of $30,150
that was treated as a debt discount and is being amortized as additional interest expense over the 24-month term of the note. The Company also issued
$200,000 in convertible debt in June 2010 and issued a warrant, in connection with the debt, to purchase 1,111,112 shares at $.46 per share.

The Company determined that the value of the June 2010 warrant is $96,613.This value is treated as a debt discount and amortized as additional interest
expense over the 22-month term of the note. The Company also issued $32,000 in convertible debt in September, 2010 and issued a warrant to purchase

320,000 shares at $.46 per share. The Company determined that this warrant has a value of $15,553 that was treated as a debt discount and amortized as

additional interest expense over the 18 month term of the note.

The following summarizes transactions for stock options and warrants for the periods indicated:

Stock Options (1) Warrants (1)
Average Average
Number of Exercise Number of Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price

Outstanding at December 31,2005 17,956 $ 1.67 20,950 $ 2.62
Issued 23,942 1.67 71,826 0.85
Outstanding at December 31, 2006 41,898 §$ 1.67 92,776 $ 1.25
Issued 5,984 1.67 28,502 0.35
Outstanding at December 31,2007 47882 $ 1.67 121,278  $ 1.04
Issued 1,243,292 0.20 5,075,204 045
Expired (11,971) 3.76
Outstanding at December 31,2008 1,291,174  $ 0.26 5,184,511 0.45
Issued 205,000 0.37 2,188,302 0.65
Outstanding at December 31,2009 1,496,174 0.27 7,372,813 0.49
Issued 150,000 0.50 3,035,662 0.38
Expired (17,956) 1.67 (8,979) 1.67
Outstanding at September 30,2010 1,628,218 0.28 10,399,496 0.46

(1) Adjusted for the reverse stock splits in total at June 6,2008 and October 20, 2008. There were no options or warrants exercised in the periods.
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At September 30,2010, options to purchase 1,078,218 shares of common stock were fully vested and exercisable with a weighted average exercise price of
$.28 and a weighted average remaining term of 4.7 years. There were also warrants to purchase 10,399,496 shares of common stock that were fully vested and
exercisable. Stock-based compensation recognized in the nine months ended September 30,2010 and 2009 were $667,000 and $549,000, respectively. The
following summarizes the status of options and warrants outstanding at September 30, 2010.

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Range of Exercise Prices Shares Life
Options
$0.01 543,292 7.68
$0.35 875,000 2.87
$0.50 180,000 8.14
$1.67 29,926 1.27
Total 1,628,218
Warrants
$0.02 71,826 3.70
$0.10 800,000 242
$0.17 250,000 4.94
$0.35 798,597 2.18
$0.46 6,403,610 1.29
$0.65 2,039,550 1.93
$1.67 35,913 1.20
Total 10,399,496

Stock options and warrants expire on various dates from June 2011 to February 2020.

Under the terms of the Company's agreement with investors in the October 2008 financing, 1,920,000 shares of common stock were the maximum number of
shares allocated to the Company's existing shareholders at the time of the offering (also referred to as the original shareholders or the "Founders"). Since the
total of the Company's fully-diluted shares of common stock was greater than 1,920,000 shares, in order for the Company to proceed with the offering, the
board of directors approved a reverse stock split of 1-for-1.2545. After this split was approved, additional options and warrants were identified, requiring a
second reverse stock split in order to reach the 1,920,000 shares. The second reverse stock split on the reduced 1-for-1.2545 balance was determined to be 1-
for 1.33176963. Taken together, if only one reverse stock were performed, the number would have been a reverse stock split of 1-for 1.670705.

On June 6, 2008, the board of directors approved the first reverse stock split. The authorized number of common stock 0£20,000,000 shares was
proportionately divided by 1.2545 to 15,942,607.

On October 20, 2008, the board of directors (i) approved the second reverse stock split pursuant to which the authorized number of shares of common stock of
15,942,607 was proportionately divided by 1.33177 to 11,970,994 shares and (ii) approved a resolution to increase the number of authorized shares of the
Company's common stock from 11,970,994 to 40,000,000, which was approved by the Company’s shareholders holding a majority of the shares entitled to
vote thereon at a special meeting of shareholders held on December 3, 2008.

Stock, Stock Options and Warrants Granted by the Company

The following table is the listing of stock options and warrants as of September 30,2010 by year of grant:

Stock Options:

Year Shares Price
2006 23,942 1.67
2007 5,984 1.67
2008 1,243,292 .01-35
2009 205,000 .35-.50
2010 150,000 .50
Total 1,628,218 $ 01-$1.67




Warrants:

Year Shares Price

2006 71,826 .02-1.67
2007 28,502 35
2008 5,075,204 .02-46
2009 2,188,302 .35-.65
2010 3,035,662 .10-.65
Total 10,399,496 § .02-$1.67

NOTE 4 - RESTRICTED CASH IN ESCROW
Under the terms of the escrow agreement established in connection with the October 2008 financing, certain amounts were to be withheld to pay legal,
accounting and placement agent fees as well as to pay for investor relations activities that commenced upon receiving an effective registration of the

Company’s stock and an initial quotation on the OTC Bulletin Board.

During the fourth quarter of2009, $60,000 was released to pay for investor relations activities. Additionally, $103,333 has been released in 2010 to pay for
investor relations and accounting expenses. There is no balance in the escrow account as of September 30, 2010.

NOTE 5 - LOSS PER SHARE

The following table presents the shares used in the basic and diluted loss per common share computations:

From
Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended April 23,2002
September 30, September 30, (Inception) To
2010 2009 2010 2009 September 30,2010
Numerator
Net Loss available in basic and diluted calculation $ (158,110) $ (773,015) $ (956,180) $ (2,515/440) § (6,985,548)
Denominator
Weighted average common shares oustanding-basic 13,159,639 9,634,828 12,428,401 8,903,119 3,287,557
Effect of dilutive stock options and warrants (1) - - - - -
Weighted average common shares outstanding-diluted 13,159,639 9,634,828 12,428,401 8,903,119 3,287,557
Loss per common share-basic and diluted $ 0.01) $ 0.08) $ 0.08) $ 0.28) $ (2.12)

(1) The number of shares underlying options and warrants outstanding as of September 30,2010 and September 30,2009 are 12,027,714 and 8,595,958,
respectively. The effect of the shares that would be issued upon exercise of such options and warrants has been excluded from the calculation of diluted
loss per share because those shares are anti-dilutive.

NOTE 6 — INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes consists of an amount for taxes currently payable and a provision for tax consequences deferred to future periods. Deferred
income taxes are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets
and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable

income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled.

There is no income tax provision in the accompanying statement of operations due to the cumulative operating losses that indicate a 100% valuation
allowance for the deferred tax assets and state income taxes is appropriate.

Federal and state income tax return operating loss carryovers, as of December 31, 2009, were approximately $5,415,000 and will begin to expire between
2017 and 2019.

The valuation allowance has been recorded due to the uncertainty of realization of the benefits associated with the net operating losses. Future events and
changes in circumstances could cause this valuation allowance to change.

The components of deferred income taxes at September 30,2010 and December 31,2009 are as follows:

September 30, December 31,

2010 2009
(Unaudited)
Deferred Tax Asset:
Net Operating Loss $ 1,500,000 $ 1,278,000
Total Deferred Tax Asset 1,500,000 1,278,000
Less Valuation Allowance 1,500,000 1,278,000
Net Deferred Income Taxes $ — $ —




NOTE 7- CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURE

The Company issued a convertible debenture to Andcor Companies, Inc. (“Andcor”) with principal of $10,000 and interest at 10.25% that originally matured
in 2007. The debenture is convertible into shares of the Company’s common stock at the lower of $0.90 per share or the price per share at which the next
equity financing agreement is completed, and is now re-set to $.35 per share. The convertible debenture has not yet been paid, but the maturity of the note
was extended, in May 2010, to March 31,2012.

NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM DEBT
Long-term debt is as follows:

September 30, December 31,
2010 2009

Note payable to bank in monthly installments of $1,275/including variable interest at 2% above the prevailing prime

rate (3.25% at September 30,2010) to August 2011 when the remaining balance is payable. The note is personally

guaranteed by former executives of the Company. 13,925 24,601
Notes payable to two individuals, net of discounts of $11,402 and $17,438 with interest only payments at 12% to

March 2012 when the remaining balance is payable. The notes are convertible into 285,715 shares of common stock

in the Company at $.35 per share. 88,598 82,562
Note payable issued on October 26, 2009 to the parents of one the Company's officers, net of a discount of $16,128 and

$27,435 discount, with interest at 8% to March 31,2012 and convertible into shares of common stock at $.50 per

share. 83,871 72,565
Notes payable issued to two individuals in January,2010. The notes bear interest at 8%, mature March 31,2012 and are

convertible into shares of common stock, at 50% of the weighted average closing bid price over any 10-consecutive

days of trading. 100,000 -
Note payable issued on June 12,2010 to the parents of one of the Company's officers, net of a discount of $80,803. The
note bears interest at 12% to March 31,2012, and is convertible into common stock at $.18 per share. 119,197 -

Note payable issued on August 2,2010 to and institutional investor. The note bears interest at 8%, matures May 4,
2011 and is convertible into common stock at 50% of the average of the three lowest closing prices in any 10 day

trading period. 50,000 -
Note payable issued on September 16,2010 to an institutional investor. The note bears interest at 10%, matures March

15,2012 and is convertible into common stock at $.18 per share. 100,000 -
Note payable issued on September 21,2010 to the parents of one of our officers, net of a discount 0f $15,294. The note

bears interest at 12%, matures March 30,2012 and is convertible into common stock at $.18 per shares 16,706 -
Total 572,296 179,728
Less amount due within one year 63,925 63,620
Long-Term Debt $ 508,371 $ 116,108

Cash payments for interest were $1,351 for the nine months ended September 30,2009 and $799 for the nine months ended September 30,2010.

Principal payments required during the 12-month periods ended September 30:

2011 $ 63,925
2012 $ 642,000
2013 $ 0

NOTE 9 — RENT OBLIGATION

The Company leases its principal office under a non-cancelable lease that extends five years. In addition to rent, the Company pays real estate taxes and
repairs and maintenance on the leased property.

The Company’s rent obligation for the years 2010 to 2014 is as follows:

2010 $ 29,000
2011 $ 30,000
2012 $ 30,000
2013 $ 26,000
2014 $ 0




NOTE 10 — LIABILITY FOR EQUITY-LINKED FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company adopted ASC 815- Derivatives and Hedging (“ASC 815”) on January 1,2009. ASC 815 mandates a two-step process for evaluating whether an
equity-linked financial instrument or embedded feature is indexed to the entity's own stock. It is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15,2008,
and interim periods within those fiscal years, which was the Company's first quarter of 2009. Most of the warrants issued by the Company contain a strike
price adjustment feature, which upon adoption of ASC 815, changed the classification (from equity to liability) and the related accounting for warrants with a
$479,910 estimated fair value of as of January 1,2009. An adjustment was made to remove $486,564 from paid-in capital (the cumulative values of the
warrants on their grant dates), a positive adjustment of $6,654 was made to accumulated deficit, representing the gain on valuation from the grant date to
January 1,2009, and booked $479,910 as a liability.

The January 1, 2009 valuation was computed using the Black-Scholes valuation model based upon a 2.5-year expected term, an expected volatility of 63%,
an exercise price of $.46 per share, a stock price of $.35, a zero dividend rate and a 1.37% risk free interest rate. Subsequent to January 1,2009 these warrants
were revalued at the end of each quarter and a gain or loss was recorded based upon their increase or decrease in value during the quarter. Likewise, new
warrants that were issued during 2009 and 2010 were valued, using the Black-Scholes valuation model on their date of grant and an entry was made to reduce
paid-in capital and increase the liability for equity-linked financial instruments. These warrants were also re-valued at the end of each quarter based upon
their expected life, the stock price, the exercise price, assumed dividend rate, expected volatility and risk free interest rate. A significant reduction in the
liability was realized in 2010 primarily due to a reduction from $.50 to $.22 per share in the underlying share price.

The inputs to the Black-Scholes model during 2009 and 2010 were as follows:

Stock price $ 22t0$.50
Exercise price $§ 17t08$.65
Expected life 2.00 to 6.5years
Expected volatility 59% to 67%
Assumed dividend rate -%
Risk free interest rate 710% to 2.97%

The original valuations, annual gain/(loss) and end of year valuations are shown below:

Annual Value at YTD 2010 Value at
Initial Value Gain (Loss) 12/31/2009 Gain 9/30/2010
January 1,2009 Adoption $ 479910 $ (390,368) $ 870,278 799,779 70,498
Warrants issued in quarter ended
6/30/2009 169,854 20,847 149,007 129,312 19,695
Warrants issued in quarter ended
9/30/2009 39,743 (738) 40,481 38,473 2,008
Warrants issued in quarter ended
12/31/2009 12,698 617 12,081 10,202 1,879
Subtotal $ 702,205 $ (369,642) $ 1,071,847

Warrants issued in quarter ended
3/31/2010 25,553 20,903 4,650
Warrants issued in quarter ended
6/30/2010 31,332 26,393 4,939
Warrants issued in quarter ended
9/30/2010 31,506 232 31,274

Total $ 790,506 $ 1,025294 § 134,943

NOTE 11 - RELATED PARTY

The Company entered into agreements, in 2008, with our Chairman of the Board, Lawrence Gadbaw, and in 2009 with board member, Peter Morawetz, to pay
Mr. Gadbaw $25,000 and Mr. Morawetz $30,000 upon the Company raising $3 million in new equity. Mr. Gadbaw will also be paid the balance, if any, due
under his separation agreement from 2008. This amount was $46,000 upon signing the agreement in 2008, is payable at $2,000 per month, and $2,000
remains in accounts payable as of September 30,2010. Mr. Morawetz will also receive a stock option for 75,000 shares at $.35 per share and Mr. Gadbaw will
receive a stock option for 160,000 shares at $.35 per share upon the Company raising $3 million.
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ITEM 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Overview

Our Company was incorporated in Minnesota in April 2002. We are an early-stage company developing an environmentally conscientious system for the
collection and disposal of infectious fluids that result from surgical procedures and post-operative care. We achieved our first sale in June 2009. Since our
inception in 2002, we have invested significant resources into product development and in preparing for approval from the FDA. We believe that our success
depends upon converting the traditional process of collecting and disposing of infectious fluids from the operating rooms of medical facilities to our wall-
mounted Fluid Management System (“FMS”) and use of our proprietary cleaning fluid.

Since inception, we have been unprofitable. We incurred a net loss of approximately $2,892,000 for the fiscal year ended 2009 and a net loss of
approximately $956,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2010 compared to a loss of approximately $2,515,000 for the nine months ended
September 30, 2009. As of September 30, 2010, we had an accumulated deficit of approximately $6,986,000. As a company in the early stage of
development, our limited history of operations makes prediction of future operating results difficult. We believe that period to period comparisons of our
operating results should not be relied on as predictive of our future results.

We have focused on finalizing our production and obtaining final FDA clearance to sell our product to the medical facilities market. FDA final clearance was
obtained on April 1,2009. Our innovative FMS will be sold through experienced, independent medical distributors and manufacturers representatives who
we believe enhance acceptability of our product in the marketplace. We are currently in the process of signing agreements with independent sales
representatives and product installation organizations and conducting training sessions. We achieved our first billable shipment in June 2009. Since our FDA
clearance to sell our FMS product was only received on April 1,2009, it is too early to know with a high degree of confidence how quickly, and in what
amounts, new orders will develop.

Since we do not expect to generate sufficient revenues in 2010 to fund our capital requirements, our capital needs for the next 12 months are expected to be
approximately $3 million even though we plan to use outside third party contract manufacturers to produce the FMS and independent sales representatives to
sell the FMS. Our future cash requirements and the adequacy of available funds will depend on our ability to sell our FMS and related products now that FDA
final clearance has been obtained. We expect that we will require additional funding to finance operating expenses and to enter the international
marketplace.

As of September 30,2010, we have funded our operations through a bank loan of $41,400, an equity investment of $68,000 from the Wisconsin Rural
Enterprise Fund (“WREF”) and $30,000 in early equity investment from several individuals. WREF had also previously held debt in the form of three loans
0f$18,000, $12,500 and $25,000. In December 2006, WREF converted two of the loans totaling $37,500 into 43,000 shares of common stock. In August
2006, we secured a $10,000 convertible loan from one of our vendors. In February 2007, we obtained $4,000 in officer and director loans, and, in March
2007, we arranged a $100,000 convertible note from two private investors. In July 2007, we obtained a convertible bridge loan of $170,000. In June 2008, we
paid off the remaining $18,000 loan from WREF and have raised approximately $1.6 million through our October 2008 financing. During 2009, we raised an
additional $625,000 in a private placement of 1,200,000 Units at $.50 per Unit, which Units included one share of common stock and a warrant to purchase
one share of common stock at $.65 per share, and $100,000 in convertible debt, convertible into common stock at $.50 per shares and a warrant to purchase
200,000 shares at $.65 per share.

In the first nine months 0f 2010, the Company raised $202,275 in equity by issuing 354,550 Units at $.50 per Unit, which Units included one share of
common stock and a warrant to purchase one share of common stock at $.65 per share and 250,000 Units at $.10 per Unit including one common share and a
warrant to purchase one common share at $.17. We borrowed $200,000 in January 2010 from an investor and existing shareholders and $200,000 in June
2010 from the parents of one of our officers. We borrowed $50,000 in August 2010 from an investor with interest at 8% and a conversion price of 50% of the
average of the 3 lowest closing prices in any 10 day trading period. We borrowed $100,000 in September 2010 from an investor with interest at 10% and a
conversion price of $.18 per share and we borrowed $32,000 in September 2010 from the parents of one of our officers with interest at 12% and a conversion
price of $.10 per share, and a warrant to purchase 320,000 shares at $.46 per share. The January 2010 notes bear interest at 8% and are convertible into
common stock of the Company at 50% of the average trading price of the Company’s common stock over a ten-day trading period. We repaid $100,000 of
the January 2010 notes in June 2010. The $200,000 note in June 2010 bears interest at 12% and is convertible into common stock at $.18 per share. We also
issued a warrant, in connection with the June 2010 note, to purchase 1,111,112 shares of common stock at $.46 per share.

16




Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates and Recent Accounting Developments Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our audited Financial Statements, which have been prepared
in accordance with U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP”). The preparation of these financial statements requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as of the date of our financial statements, the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting periods presented, as well as our disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate our
estimates and assumptions, including, but not limited to, fair value of stock-based compensation, fair value of acquired intangible assets and goodwill, useful
lives of intangible assets and property and equipment, income taxes, and contingencies and litigation.

We base our estimates and assumptions on our historical experience and on various other information available to us at the time that these estimates and
assumptions are made. We believe that these estimates and assumptions are reasonable under the circumstances and form the basis for our making judgments
about the carrying values of our assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results and outcomes could differ from our
estimates.

Our significant accounting policies are described in Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, in the Notes to Financial Statements of this Form
10-Q. We believe that the following discussion addresses our critical accounting policies and reflect those areas that require more significant judgments, and
use of estimates and assumptions in the preparation of our Financial Statements.

Revenue Recognition We recognize revenue in accordance with the SEC’s Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 101, Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements,
as amended by Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104 (together, SAB 101), and Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 48, Revenue Recognition When
Right of Return Exists (SFAS 48).

Revenue is recognized when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred, the fee is fixed and determinable and collectability is
probable. Delivery is considered to have occurred upon either shipment of the product or arrival at its destination based on the shipping terms of the
transaction. Our standard terms specify that shipment is FOB BioDrain and we will, therefore recognize revenue upon shipment in most cases. This revenue
recognition policy applies to shipments of our FMS units as well as shipments of cleaning solution kits. When these conditions are satisfied, we recognize
gross product revenue, which is the price we charge generally to our customers for a particular product. Under our standard terms and conditions there is no
provision for installation or acceptance of the product to take place prior to the obligation of the customer. The customer’s right of return is limited only to
our standard warranty whereby we replace or repair, at our option, and it would be very rare that the unit or significant quantities of cleaning solution kits
may be returned. Additionally, since we buy both the FMS units and cleaning solution kits from “turnkey” suppliers, we would have the right to
replacements from the suppliers if this situation should occur.




Stock-Based Compensation. Effective January 1,2006, the Company adopted SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-Based Payment (SFAS 123(R)) which
replaced SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation (SFAS 123) and superseded Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 25,
Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees (APB 25), all now codified under ASC 718- Compensation-Stock Compensation (“ASC 718). Under ASC 718
stock-based employee compensation cost is recognized using the fair value based method for all new awards granted after January 1,2006 and unvested
awards outstanding at January 1,2006. Compensation costs for unvested stock options and non-vested awards that were outstanding at January 1, 2006, are
being recognized over the requisite service period based on the grant-date fair value of those options and awards as previously calculated under SFAS 123 for
pro forma disclosures, using a straight-line method. We elected the modified-prospective method in under which prior periods are not retroactively restated.

ASC 718 requires companies to estimate the fair value of stock-based payment awards on the date of grant using an option-pricing model or other acceptable
means. The Company uses the Black-Scholes option valuation model which requires the input of significant assumptions including an estimate of the
average period of time employees will retain vested stock options before exercising them, the estimated volatility of th Company's common stock price over
the expected term, the number of options that will ultimately be forfeited before completing vesting requirements, the expected dividend rate and the risk-
free interest rate. Changes in the assumptions can materially affect the estimate of fair value of stock-based compensation and, consequently, the related
expense recognized. The assumptions the Company uses in calculating the fair value of stock-based payment awards represent the Company's best estimates,
which involve inherent uncertainties and the application of management's judgment. As a result, if factors change and the Company uses different
assumptions, the Company's equity-based compensation expense could be materially different in the future.

Because we do not have significant historical trading data on our stock we relied upon trading data from a composite of 10 medical companies traded on
major exchanges and 15 medical companies traded on the OTC Bulletin Board to help us arrive at expectations as to volatility of our own stock when public
trading commences. Likewise, we have no history of option and warrant exercises, so we were required to make a significant judgment as to expected option
and warrant exercise patterns in the future regarding employee and director options and warrants. In the case of options and warrants issued to consultants and
investors we used the legal term of the option/warrant as the estimated term unless there was a compelling reason to use a shorter term. The measurement date
for employee and non-employee options and warrants is the grant date of the option or warrant. The vesting period for options that contain service conditions
is based upon management’s best estimate as to when the applicable service condition will be achieved. Changes in the assumptions can materially affect the
estimate of fair value of stock-based compensation and, consequently, the related expense recognized. The assumptions we use in calculating the fair value of
stock-based payment awards represent our best estimates, which involve inherent uncertainties and the application of management's judgment. As a result, if
factors change and we use different assumptions, our equity-based compensation expense could be materially different in the future. See Note 3, Stock-Based
Compensation, in Notes to Financial Statements, for additional information.

When an option or warrant is granted in place of cash compensation for services we deem the value of the service rendered to be the value of the option or
warrant. In most cases, however, an option or warrant is granted in addition to other forms of compensation and its separate value is difficult to determine
without utilizing an option pricing model. For that reason we also use the Black-Scholes-Merton option-pricing model to value options and warrants granted
to non-employees, which requires the input of significant assumptions including an estimate of the average period that investors or consultants will retain
vested stock options and warrants before exercising them, the estimated volatility of our common stock price over the expected term, the number of options
and warrants that will ultimately be forfeited before completing vesting requirements and the risk-free interest rate. Changes in the assumptions can
materially affect the estimate of fair value of stock-based compensation and, consequently, the related expense recognized that. Since we have limited trading
history in our common stock and no first-hand experience with how our investors and consultants have acted in similar circumstances, the assumptions we
use in calculating the fair value of stock-based payment awards represent our best estimates, which involve inherent uncertainties and the application of
management's judgment. As a result, if factors change and we use different assumptions, our equity-based consulting and interest expense could be materially
different in the future.

Since our common stock has limited public trading history we were required to take an alternative approach to estimating future volatility and the future
results could vary significantly from our estimates. We compiled historical volatilities over a period of 2-7 years of 15 small-cap medical companies traded
on major exchanges and 10 mid-size medical companies on the OTC Bulletin Board and combined the results using a weighted average approach. In the case
of standard options to employees we determined the expected life to be the midpoint between the vesting term and the legal term. In the case of options or
warrants granted to non-employees we estimated the life to be the legal term unless there was a compelling reason to make it shorter.

Valuation of Intangible Assets We review identifiable intangible assets for impairment in accordance with SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets (SFAS 144), whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Our
intangible assets are currently solely the costs of obtaining trademarks and patents. Events or changes in circumstances that indicate the carrying amount may
not be recoverable include, but are not limited to, a significant change in the medical device marketplace and a significant adverse change in the business
climate in which we operate. If such events or changes in circumstances are present, the undiscounted cash flows method is used to determine whether the
intangible asset is impaired. Cash flows would include the estimated terminal value of the asset and exclude any interest charges. If the carrying value of the
asset exceeds the undiscounted cash flows over the estimated remaining life of the asset, the asset is considered impaired, and the impairment is measured by
reducing the carrying value of the asset to its fair value using the discounted cash flows method. The discount rate utilized is based on management's best
estimate of the related risks and return at the time the impairment assessment is made.

Our accounting estimates and assumptions bear various risks of change, including the length of the current recession facing the United States, the expansion

of the slowdown in consumer spending in the U.S. medical markets despite the early expressed opinions of financial experts that the medical market would
not be as affected as other markets and failure to gain acceptance in the medical market.
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Recent Accounting Developments

See Note 1 - “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” to the Condensed Financial Statements of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for a discussion of
recent accounting developments.

Results of Operations
Three months and nine months ended September 30,2010 and 2009

Revenue. The Company recorded no revenue in the three months ended September 30,2010 and $288 in revenue in the nine months ended September 30,
2010 compared to revenue of zero in the three months ended September 30,2009 and $15,737 during the nine months ended September 30, 2009. The
Company received its first order for four FMS units and a case of cleaning solution kits from a hospital in Texas and shipped the first FMS unit and the
cleaning solution kits in June 2009. The revenue was approximately $14,000 for the FMS unit, approximately $1,000 for the cleaning solution kits and $750
for installation. The revenue in the first quarter of 2010 was for disposable supplies purchased by a beta site customer. The Company expects the revenue for
FMS units to increase significantly at such time as we obtain sufficient financing to pay our contract manufacturer to produce and ship the product.

Cost of sales. Cost of sales was zero in the three months ended September 30,2010 and $140 in the nine months ended September 30,2010 compared to zero
in the three months ended September 30,2009 and $7,450 in the nine months ended September 30, 2009. The gross profit margin was approximately 50% for
both the hardware and the cleaning solution kits in the nine months ended September 30,2010 and September 30, 2009 but should increase over time as
volume purchasing discounts on both the equipment and the cleaning solution begin to take effect.

General and Administrative expense. General and administrative expense primarily consists of, management salaries, professional fees, consulting fees,
travel expense, administrative fees and general office expenses.

General and Administrative (G&A) expenses decreased to $381,000 from $522,000 in the three months ended September 30,2010 compared to September
30,2009 and increased to $1,532,000 in the nine months ended September 30,2010 compared to $1,393,000 in the nine months ended September 30, 2009.
The decrease in the three month period was due to a $236,000 expense for stock based compensation recorded in the three months ended September 30,2009
with no corresponding expense in 2010. The decrease was offset, in part, by an increase of $50,000 in legal fees and a $48,000 increase in consulting
expense. The increase in the nine months ended September 30, 2010 was primarily due to a $536,000 increase in stock-based consulting expense for stock
and warrants issued to consultants who were engaged to raise new funds and to increase public awareness in our stock through an investor relations program.
The Company also incurred an increase of $149,000 in legal fees, a $38,000 increase in investor relations expense and a $17,000 increase in corporate
insurance expense, all offset in significant part, by a $355,000 decrease in stock-based registration payments. The Company incurred a $355,000 stock
registration payment expense in the first half of 2009 due to a delay in registration of stock issued in a 2008 financing but did not incur a similar expense in
2010. Total G&A expenses are expected to increase due to increased insurance premiums, investor relations expenses and audit fees, resulting from becoming
a public company, but otherwise remain relatively constant over the next several quarters.

Operations expense. Operations expense primarily consists of expenses related to product development and prototyping and testing in the company’s
current stage.

Operations expense decreased to $56,000 in the three months ended September 30, 2010 compared to $157,000 in the three months ended September 30,
2009 and decreased to $165,000 in the nine months ended September 30, 2010 compared to $351,000 in the nine months ended September 30, 2009. The
decrease in the three-month and nine month periods was primarily due to a $101,000 reduction in stock based compensation expense. In the nine-month
period there was also a $20,000 reduction in product development expense and a $62,000 reduction in consulting and testing expenses as a result of the
Company obtaining FDA clearance in April 2009. Operations expense in the next several quarters is expected to increase significantly as the Company
expects to commence shipments of FMA units as soon as we obtain sufficient financing to pay our contract manufacturer to build and ship the units.
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Sales and Marketing expense. Sales and marketing expense consists of expenses required to sell products through independent reps, attendance at trades
shows, product literature and other sales and marketing activities.

Sales and marketing expenses decreased to $36,000 in the three months ended September 30,2010 and $177,000 in the nine months ended September 30,
2010 from $136,000 and $345,000 in the comparable 2009 periods, respectively. The decrease in expense was primarily related to a $36,000 reduction in the
three-month period and a $95,000 reduction in the nine-month period, in marketing supplies expense, travel and trade show expense. There was also a
reduction in stock based compensation expense of $64,000 and $72,000 in the three months and nine months ended September 30, 2010, respectively, and a
$19,000 decrease in salaries during the three months ended September 30,2010 due to the resignation of an employee. During the last several quarters the
Company has operated on a very slim marketing budget as a result of limited funding but we expect to increase our trade show, promotion and travel expense
significantly after we receive significant funding.

Interest expense.

Interest expense increased to $34,000 in the three months ended September 30, 2010 compared to $25,000 in the three months ended September 30, 2009,
and increased to $108,000 in the nine months ended September 30, 2010 compared to $64,000 in the nine months ended September 30, 2009. The increase
in interest expense in both the three-month and nine-month periods was due to a higher level ofinterest bearing debt and amortization of larger debt
discounts attributable to new convertible debt issued with warrants.

The (Gain)/Loss on revaluation of equity-linked financial instruments swung to a gain of $349,000 in the three months ended September 30,2010 and
$1,025,000 in the nine months ended September 30,2010 compared to a gain 0f $66,000 and a loss of $370,000 in the three months and nine months ended
September 30, 2009, respectively. The gain in the current periods resulted from a slight reduction in the risk-free interest rate used in the valuation model, a
reduction in the remaining life and a reduction to $.22 per share from $.50 per share in the underlying stock price.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Capital Structure

We had a cash balance 0f $16,632 as of December 31,2009 and $20,434 as of September 30,2010. Since our inception, we have incurred significant losses.
As of September 30, 2010, we had an accumulated deficit of $6,986,000. We have not achieved profitability and anticipate that we will continue to incur net
losses for the foreseeable future. We expect that our operations expense, including product development expense, sales and marketing and general and
administrative expenses will increase, and as a result we will need to generate significant revenue to achieve profitability.

There is no certainty that access to needed capital will be successful. We have not depended on the future exercise of outstanding warrants to provide
additional funding.

To date, our operations have been funded through a bank loan and private convertible debt in the amount of approximately $1,022,000 and equity
investments totaling approximately $2,500,000. As of September 30,2010, we had accounts payable of $1,128,000 and accrued liabilities of $384,000.

Cash Flows

Net cash used in operating activities was $773,000 in the nine months ended September 30, 2010 compared to $986,000 net cash used in operating activities
in the nine months ended September 30, 2009. Although the net loss in the nine months ended September 30,2010 was more than $1.5 million less than in
the 2009 first nine months, the 2009 period included a non-cash loss of $370,000 on the valuation of equity-linked securities compared to a non-cash gain of
$1,025,000 in the first nine months of 2010 which offset, in part, the use of cash from operations resulting from the net loss. In addition, accounts payable and
accrued expenses increased by $317,000 in the nine months ended September 30,2010 compared to the same period in 2009 which further reduced the cash
used in operating activities.

Net cash used in investing activities was $0 in the nine months ended September 30, 2010 and 2009. There have been no investing activities since the
Company invested in new furniture and patents in 2008. The Company will likely increase its cash used in investing activities in the next several quarters as
we prepare to support the expected growth in sales.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $777,000 in the nine months ended September 30,2010 compared to $590,000 in the same 2009 period. The
Company expects to show additional cash provided by financing activities in the next few quarters.

Based on our current operating plan we believe that we have sufficient cash, cash equivalents and short-term investment balances to last approximately
through November 2010 after which additional financing will be needed to continue to satisfy our obligations. While holders of our warrants could exercise
and provide cash to us during that time frame, we are not depending on that in our fundraising efforts.

Management hired an investment banker, in February 2010, to commence an effort to raise an additional $3-$5 million in new equity with an interim closing
by August 31,2010. Although we did not accomplish our goal of closing the financing in August 2010 and our ability to raise this new capital is in
substantial doubt we received $725,000 during 2009 and $784,000 in the first nine months 0f2010 in a Company-managed private placement of securities,
and our April 1,2009 510(k) clearance from the FDA to authorize us to market and sell our FMS products is being received very positively. If the Company is
successful in raising at least $3 million in new equity we will have sufficient capital to operate our business and execute our business plan for at least the next
12 months. If the Company raises the additional capital by issuing additional equity securities its shareholders could experience substantial dilution.
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The funds remaining from our October 2008 offering have allowed us to complete the testing and certification of our FMS unit and to receive, on April 1,
2009, final FDA clearance. We believe that our existing funds will also be sufficient to pay for normal operating expenses as we await additional funding. We
have doubts about raising capital because of our early stage position and history of losses. We also note the recent economic downturn which has made the
overall market nervous about investing.

Our operating plan assumes that we will achieve certain levels of operating costs and expenses, as to which there can be no assurance that we will be able to
achieve. This plan is completely dependent on our ability to raise additional capital through future financings. In addition, if events or circumstances occur
such that we are unable to meet our operating plan as expected, we will be required to seek additional capital, pursue other strategic opportunities, or we will
be forced to reduce the level of expenditures, which could have a material adverse effect on our ability to achieve our intended business objectives and to
continue as a going concern. Even if we achieve our operating plan, we will be required to seek additional financing or strategic investments.

The current economic turmoil has a significant impact on the overall funding environment, and we cannot assure you that our opportunity will be positively
received by potential investors. We are not planning on any significant capital or equipment investments, and we will only have a few human resource
additions over the next 12 months. A significant amount of funds will be utilized to launch our product into the market. With the expenses associated with
FDA clearance having already been incurred, and with the product development primarily complete, future funds, ifany, will be used primarily to launch our
product into the market.

There can be no assurance that any additional financing will be available on acceptable terms, or at all. Furthermore, any equity financing likely will result in
dilution to existing shareholders and any debt financing likely will include restrictive covenants.

We expect to continue to depend upon outside financing to sustain our operations for at least the next 12 months. Our ability to arrange financing from third
parties will depend upon our operating performance and market conditions. Our inability to raise additional working capital at all or to raise it in a timely
manner would negatively impact our ability to fund our operations, to generate revenues, and to otherwise execute our business plan, leading to the
reduction or suspension of our operations and ultimately forcing us to go out of business. Should this occur, the value of any investment in our securities
could be adversely affected, and an investor could lose a portion of or all of their investment.

Inflation

We do not believe that inflation has had a material impact on our business and operating results during the periods presented.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have not engaged in any off-balance sheet activities as defined in Item 303(a)(4) of Regulation S-K.

Information Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This Form 10-Q contains “forward-looking statements” that indicate certain risks and uncertainties related to the Company, many of which are beyond the
Company’s control. The Company’s actual results could differ materially and adversely from those anticipated in such forward-looking statements as a result

of certain factors, including those set forth below and elsewhere in this report. Important factors that may cause actual results to differ from projections
include:

. Adverse economic conditions;

. Inability to raise sufficient additional capital to operate our business;

. Unexpected costs and operating deficits, and lower than expected sales and revenues, if any;

. Adverse results of any legal proceedings;

. The volatility of our operating results and financial condition;

. Inability to attract or retain qualified senior management personnel, including sales and marketing personnel; and

. Other specific risks that may be alluded to in this report.

All statements, other than statements of historical facts, included in this report regarding the Company’s growth strategy, future operations, financial position,
estimated revenue or losses, projected costs, prospects and plans and objectives of management are forward-looking statements. When used in this report, the
words “will,” “may,” “believe,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “estimate,” “expect,” “project,” “plan” and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-
looking statements, although not all forward-looking statements contain such identifying words. All forward-looking statements speak only as of the date of
this report. The Company does not undertake any obligation to update any forward-looking statements or other information contained herein. Potential
investors should not place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements. Although the Company believes that its plans, intentions and expectations
reflected in or suggested by the forward-looking statements in this report are reasonable, the Company cannot assure potential investors that these plans,
intentions or

expectations will be achieved. The Company discloses important factors that could cause the Company’s actual results to differ materially from its
expectations in the “Risk Factors” section of the Post-Effective Amendment No. 1 to our Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed with Securities and
Exchange Commission on May 5,2010 and elsewhere in this report. These cautionary statements qualify all forward-looking statements attributable to the
Company or persons acting on its behalf.
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ITEM 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Not required.



ITEM 4. Control and Procedures
Disclosure Controls

Our management, including our President, Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer (referred to as the “Certifying Officer”), evaluated the
effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Rule 13a-15 under the Exchange Act as of the end of the period covered by this Report on
Form 10-Q. Based on that evaluation, the Certifying Officer concluded that, as of the end of the period covered by this quarterly report, our disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Exchange Act) are effective, in all material respects, to ensure that information we are
required to disclose in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods
specified in Securities and Exchange Commission rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management,
including our President, Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Changes in Internal Controls

There were no changes in our internal controls over financial reporting during the third quarter of fiscal year 2010 that may have materially affected, or are
reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II. OTHER INFORMATION
ITEM 1. Legal Proceedings

In April 2009 Gerald Rice, a former officer of the Company made a formal demand for payment of past wages and threatened to sue the company for in excess
0f$100,000 if we did not meet his demand. Settlement discussions commenced but the parties were unable to reach an agreement. Thereafter, Mr. Rice filed a
lawsuit in Minnesota state court, Dakota County alleging claims for breach of contract and unpaid wages. The Company and Mr. Rice signed a settlement
agreement and general release dated July 22,2010, whereby the Company will pay Mr. Rice $130,000 over a period of several months with monthly amounts
dependent on our success in raising a minimum of $500,000. An initial payment of $15,000 was paid by our insurance company on July 22,2010. We are not
a party to any other pending legal proceedings that, if decided adversely to us, would have a material adverse effect upon our business, results of operations
or financial condition and are not aware of any threatened or contemplated proceeding by any governmental authority against our company. To our
knowledge, we are not a party to any pending civil or criminal action or investigation.

ITEM 1A. Risk Factors
Not required.
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ITEM 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

In July 2010 the Company issued 238,860 shares of common stock, with a value of $.22 per share, to 5 consultants in exchange for fund raising, financial
consulting and investor relations services.

In August 2010, the Company issued a $50,000 Convertible Promissory Note to an investor. The note bears interest at 8%, matures in May 2011, and is
convertible into common stock at 50% of the average of the three lowest closing prices in any 10 day trading period.

In September 2010, the Company issued a $100,000 Convertible Promissory Note to an investor. The note bears interest at 10%, matures in March 2012 and
is convertible into common stock at $.18 per share.

In September 2010, the Company issued a $32,000 Convertible Debenture to the parents of one of our officers. The note bears interest at 12%, matures in
March 2012 and is convertible into common stock at $.10 pershare. The Company also issued a warrant to purchase 320,000 shares at $.46 per share,
amended the noted dated in June 2010 to reduce the conversion price from $.25 to $.18 per share and issued a new warrant to purchase 1,111,112 shares at
$.46 per share to replace the initial warrant for 800,000 shares at $.46 per share.

In September 2010, the Company issued 250,000 common shares with a value of $.22 per share, to an investment banker as partial compensation for their
fund raising activities.

In September 2010, the Company issued 250,000 common shares to an investor in connection with his $25,000 investment in the Company. The Company
also issued a warrant to purchase 250,000 common shares at $.17 per share.

Unless otherwise specified above, the Company believes that all of the above transactions were transactions not involving any public offering within the
meaning of Section 4(2) of the Securities Act, since (a) each of the transactions involved the offering of such securities to a substantially limited number of
persons; (b) each person took the securities as an investment for his/her/its own account and not with a view to distribution; (c) each person had access to
information equivalent to that which would be included in a registration statement on the applicable form under the Securities Act; and (d) each person had
knowledge and experience in business and financial matters to understand the merits and risk of the investment; therefore no registration statement needed to
be in effect prior to such issuances.

ITEM 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities

None.

ITEM 4. [Removed and Reserved]

ITEM 5. Other Information

None.

ITEM 6. Exhibits

See the attached exhibit index.
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SIGNATURES:

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned

thereunto duly authorized.

Date: November 12,2010

BIODRAIN MEDICAL, INC.

By:
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/s/ Kevin R. Davidson

President, Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Executive Officer and

Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)




EXHIBIT INDEX

BIODRAIN MEDICAL, INC.
Form 10-Q

The quarterly and nine-month period ended September 30,2010

Exhibit No. Description
3.1* Articles of Incorporation, as amended.
3.2% Bylaws, As Amended.
31.1%* Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 0f2002.
31.2% Certification of Principal Financial and Accounting Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 0f2002.
32.1%* Certification of Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial and Accounting Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act 0f2002.

* Filed herewith.
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Exhibit 3.1
ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
OF
BioDrain Medical, Inc.

We, the undersigned, of full age, for the purpose of forming a corporation under and pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Chapter
302A in accordance with Section 302A.133, and laws amendatory thereof and supplementary thereto, adopt the following Articles of
Incorporation.

ARTICLE |
Name: The name of this Corporation shall be BioDrain Medical, Inc.

ARTICLE 11
Duration: The duration of this Corporation shall be perpetual.

ARTICLE 11l

Purpose: The purposes for which this Corporation is organized are as follows:

a. General Business purposes.

b. To manufacture, buy, sell, deal in, and to engage in, contact, and carry on the business of manufacturing, buying, selling
and dealing in, goods, wares and merchandise of every class and description.

C. To purchase, acquire, hold, improve, sell, convey, assign, release, mortgage, encumber, lease, hire and deal in and
otherwise dispose of real and personal property of every kind, name and nature, within or without the state, including
stocks, securities and obligations, and to loan money and take securities for the payment of all sums due the corporation,
and to sell, assign and release such securities, and to take real and personal property by Will and gift.

d. To carry out the purposes herein above set forth in any state, territory, district or possession of the United States, or in any
foreign country, to the extent that such purposes are not forbidden by the laws thereof; and, in the case of any state,
territory, district or possession of the United States, or any foreign country, in which one or more of such purposes are
forbidden by law, to limit, in any certificate for application to do business, the purpose or purposes which the corporation
proposes to carry on therein to such as are not forbidden by the law thereof.

ARTICLE IV

Registered Office: The location and post office address of the registered office of the corporation, in the State of Minnesota, is 699
Minnetonka Highlands Lane, Orono, MN 55356-9728.




ARTICLE V

Authorized Shares: The total number of par value shares which this corporation shall have authority to issue is 10 million shares
with a par value of one cent ($.01) per share; all of such shares shall be common stock.

ARTICLE VI

Stated Capital: The amount of stated capital with which this corporation shall begin business will be One Thousand Dollars
($10,000.00).

ARTICLE VI

Directors: The names and post office addresses of the First Directors, whose term of office shall extend until the first annual
meeting of the shareholders, or until their successors are elected and have qualified, are as follows:

Lawrence W. Gadbaw 699 Minnetonka Highlands Lane, Orono, Minnesota, 55356

j-j-a.w.w., LLC (In the person of Jeffrey K. Drogue, its Governor)
4112 Xerxes Avenue South, Minneapolis, Minnesota 55410

Peter L. Morawetz 2433 Sheridan Avenue South, Minneapolis, Minnesota 55405
Gerald D. Rice 7389 Bolton Way, Inver Grove Heights, Minnesota 55076
ARTICLE VIII
Incorporators: The names and post office addresses of each of the incorporators are as follows:
Lawrence W. Gadbaw 699 Minnetonka Highlands Lane, Orono, Minnesota, 55356

j-j-a.w.w., LLC (In the person of Jeffrey K. Drogue, its Governor)
4112 Xerxes Avenue South, Minneapolis, Minnesota 55410

Peter L. Morawetz 2433 Sheridan Avenue South, Minneapolis, Minnesota 55405
Gerald D. Rice 7389 Bolton Way, Inver Grove Heights, Minnesota 55076
ARTICLE IX

Corporate Powers: This corporation shall have all the powers granted to private corporations organized for profit by said
Minnesota Business Corporation Act, and in furtherance and not in limitation, of the powers conferred by the laws of the State of
Minnesota upon corporation s organized for the foregoing purposes, the corporation shall have the power to acquire, hold, mortgage,
pledge or dispose of the shares, bonds, securities or other evidences of indebtedness of the United States of America, or of any
domestic or foreign corporation, and while the holder of such shares, to exercise all the privileges of ownership, including the right to
vote thereon, to the same extent as a natural person might




or could do, by the president of this corporation or by proxy appointed by him, unless some other person, by resolution of the Board of
Directors, shall be appointed to vote such share.

ARTICLE X
By-Laws Change: Authority to make or alter By-Laws is hereby vested in the Board of Directors subject to the power of the
stockholders to change or repeal such By-Laws; provided, however, that the Board of Directors shall not make or alter any By-Laws
fixing their number, qualifications, classifications or terms of office.

In Testimony Whereof, the undersigned incorporators are persons who are of full age, and have hereto signed these Articles of
Incorporation, this 23" day of April 2002.

/s/ Lawrence W. Gadbaw

Lawrence W. Gadbaw

/s/ Peter L. Morawetz

Peter L. Morawetz

/s/ Jeftery K. Drogue
j-j-a.w.w., LLC (In the person of Jeffery K. Drogue, its Governor)

/s/ Gerald D. Rice
Gerald D. Rice




ARTICLES OF AMENDMENT
of
ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
of
BIODRAIN MEDICAL, INC.

The undersigned, the President of BIODRAIN MEDICAL, INC., a Minnesota corporation (the “Corporation”), does hereby certify that the following
resolution was adopted by the shareholders of the Corporation in accordance with the applicable provisions of Minnesota Statutes:

Amendment of Articles of Incorporation
RESOLVED, that the Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation are amended by deleting Article V in full and replacing it with the following:
“ARTICLE V

Authorized Shares: The total number of par shares which this Corporation shall have authority to issue is 40,000,000 shares with a
par value of one cent ($.01) per share; all of such shares shall be common stock.”

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunder subscribed my name this 3rd day of December, 2008.

/s/ Gerald D. Rice
Jerry Rice, Secretary
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ARTICLES OF CORRECTION
to
ARTICLES OF AMENDMENT
of
ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
of

BIODRAIN MEDICAL, INC.

Pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 5.16, the Amendment of the Articles of Incorporation of Biodrain Medical, Inc., filed with the Minnesota Secretary of
State on December 4, 2008, which failed to set forth information relating to a reverse stock split approved pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 302A.402,
subdivision (3), is hereby corrected as follows:

1)  The name ofthe Corporation is Biodrain Medical, Inc.

2)  The Articles of Amendment of Articles of Incorporation of Biodrain Medical, Inc., filed with the Secretary of State of Minnesota on December 4, 2008,
are hereby corrected.

3)  The statement of “Authorized Shares” was an inaccurate record of the action referred to in the Articles of Amendment of Articles of Incorporation of
Biodrain Medical, Inc. (the “Instrument”). Prior to the filing of the Instrument, the total number of authorized shares of the Corporation was 15,942,607.
However, on December 3, 2008, in connection with the approval by the Board of Directors of a 1.33176963-to-1 reverse stock split, which reduced the total
number of authorized shares from 15,942,607 to 11,970,995, the shareholders of the Corporation approved an increase in the total number of authorized
shares from 11,970,995 shares to 40,000,000 shares (together, the “Actions”). The Instrument, therefore, inaccurately reflected the Action taken by the Board
of Directors and the shareholders of the Corporation.




4)

The Instrument in corrected form is as follows:

Pursuant to the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Section 302A.139, the Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation are amended
by deleting Article V in full and replacing it with the following:

ARTICLE V

Reverse Stock Split: Upon the date that these Articles of Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation become
effective in accordance with the Minnesota Statutes, Section 302A (the “Effective Date”), each 1.33176963 shares of common
stock, par value of $0.01 per share (“Old Common Stock”™), of the Corporation issued and outstanding immediately prior to the
Effective Date shall be, without any action of the holder thereof, automatically reclassified as and converted into one (1) share of
common stock, par value $0.01 per share (“New Common Stock”), of the Corporation.

Notwithstanding the immediately preceding paragraph, no fractional shares of New Common Stock shall be issued to the holders
of record of Old Common Stock in connection with the foregoing reclassification of shares of Old Common Stock, and no
certificates or scrip representing any such fractional shares shall be issued. In lieu of such fraction of a share, any holder of such
fractional share shall be entitled to receive one whole share of the New Common Stock.

Each stock certificate that, immediately prior to the Effective Date, represented shares of Old Common Stock shall, from and after
the Effective Date, automatically and without the necessity of presenting the same for exchange, represent that number of whole
shares of New Common Stock into which the shares of Old Common Stock represented by such certificate shall have been
reclassified. A letter of transmittal will provide the means by which each holder of record of a certificate that represented shares of
Old Common Stock shall receive, upon surrender of such certificate, a new certificate representing the number of whole shares of
New Common Stock into which the shares of Old Common Stock represented by such certificate shall have been reclassified.

In accordance with Minnesota Statutes, Section 302A.402, subdivision (3)(b), the above Amendment will not adversely affect the
rights or preferences of the holders of outstanding shares of any class or series and will not result in the percentage of authorized
shares of any class or series that remains unissued after the combination exceeding the percentage of authorized shares of that class
or series that were unissued before the combination.




Authorized Shares: Subsequent to the Reverse Stock Split provided for in the immediately preceding section, the total number of
shares which this Corporation shall have authority to issue is 11,970,995 shares with a par value of one cent ($0.01) per share; all
of such shares shall be common stock. Immediately thereafter, the total number of shares which this Corporation shall have
authority to issue shall be 40,000,000 shares with a par value of one cent ($0.01) per share; all of such shares shall be common

stock.

5) Iswearthat the foregoing is true and accurate and that I have the authority to sign this document.

Executed on this 11th day of December, 2009.

/s/ Alan Shuler
Alan Shuler, Secretary




ARTICLES OF AMENDMENT
of
ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
of

BIODRAIN MEDICAL, INC.

The undersigned, the President and Chief Executive Officer of BIODRAIN MEDICAL, INC., a Minnesota corporation (the “Corporation”), does
hereby certify that the following resolution was adopted by the shareholders of the Corporation in accordance with the applicable provisions of Minnesota
Statutes, Chapter 302A:

Amendment of Articles of Incorporation

RESOLVED, that the Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation are amended by deleting Article V in full and replacing it with the following:

“ARTICLE V

Authorized Shares: The total number of par shares which this Corporation shall have authority to issue is 80,000,000 shares with a par
value of one cent ($.01) per share; all of such shares shall be common stock.”

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunder subscribed my name this 23rd day of June, 2010.

/s/ Kevin R. Davidson

Kevin R. Davidson, President and Chief
Executive Officer




Exhibit 3.2

By-Laws
of
BioDrain Medical, Inc.
Article I
Stockholders’ Meetings

Section 1. Place of meetings. The meetings of the stockholders shall be held at any place designated by the Board of Directors or consented to in
writing by all of the stockholders entitled to vote there at.

Section 2. Stuckholders Meetings. Meetings will be held by written notice, stating the place, day and hour of the meeting, mailed or personally
delivered not less than (5) days prior to the date of the meeting, by the secretary to each stockholder of record entitled to vote at such meeting.

Section 3. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the stockholders may be called at anytime upon request of the President, any Vice-President or a
majority of the members of the Board of Directors, by one or more stockholders holding not less then one-tenth of the voting power of the stockholders.

Section 4. Notice of meetings. Written notice, stating the place, day and hour of the meeting and, in case of a special meeting, mailed or personally
delivered not less than five (5) days prior to the date of the meeting, by the secretary to each stockholder of record entitled to vote at such meeting. Waiver by
a stockholder of notice of a stockholders’ meeting, signed by him whether before or after the time of such meeting, shall be equivalent to the giving of such
notice. In case of adjournment of a meeting from time to time, no further notice of the adjournment shall be necessary if an announcement is made at the
meeting where the adjournment is had, specifying the place, day and hour of the adjourned meeting.

Section 5. Voting Rights. Every holder of record, as provided below, of Common Stock shall be entitled to vote, in person or by proxy executed in
writing and delivered to the Secretary at or before the meeting, and he shall be entitled to one vote for each share of standing in his name; provided that no
proxy shall be voted if executed more than one year prior to the date of such meeting except as may otherwise be provided by the Board of Directors from
time to time, only stockholders of record at the close of business on a day twenty (20) days prior to the date of the meeting shall be entitled to vote at such
meeting.

Section 6. Quorum. The presence, in person or by proxy of the holders of a majority of the shares entitled to vote at the meeting shall constitute a
quorum for the transaction of business. In the absence of a quorum for the transaction of business, any meeting may be adjourned from time to time. The
stockholders present at a duly called or held meeting may continue to do business until adjournment, notwithstanding the withdrawal of enough
stockholders to leave less than a quorum. The President or, in his absence, the Vice-President or any other person designated from time to time by the Board
of Directors, shall preside at all meetings of the Stockholders.




Article II
Directors
Section 1. Number of Directors. The business of the corporation shall be managed by a board of not less than three nor more than seven directors, who

need not be stockholders of the corporation and the decisions of the board shall be by a majority of the members, If the number of stockholders shall be less
than three, including beneficial stockholders, the board may consist of a number of directors not less than the number of such stockholders.

Section 2. Tenure. At each annual meeting the stockholders shall elect directors to hold office until the next succeeding annual meeting or until there
successors are elected and qualified.

Section 3. Vacancies. Any vacancy occurring in the Board of Directors may be filled by the affirmative vote of the remaining directors or by election at
a meeting of stockholders. A director elected to fill a vacancy shall be elected for the unexpired term of his predecessor in office.

Section 4. Meeting of the Board Meetings of the Board of Directors may be held upon three (3) days’ written notice upon the call of the President or
any director. Notice may be waived in writing before or after the time of such meeting, and attendance of a Director at a meeting shall constitute a waiver of
notice thereof. Neither the business to be transacted at, nor the purpose of, any meeting need be specified in the notice of such meeting.

Section 5. Quorum. A majority of the Directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, provided, however, that if any vacancies exist
for any reason, the remaining directors shall constitute a quorum for the filling of such vacancies.

Article II1
Officers

Section 1. Number of officers. The officers of the corporation shall consist of a President and CEO, one or more Vice-Presidents, a secretary and a
treasurer, and such other officers and assistant officers, counsel and agents as may be chosen by the Board of Directors from time to time. One person may
hold any two offices, except that the President shall not hold the office of Vice-President, unless there is only one member of the Board, in which case he shall
hold all offices.

Section 2. Elections; Vacancies; Tenure. Officers shall be chosen at a meeting of the Board of Directors, to hold office until their successors are chosen
and qualified. Any officer may be removed with or without cause by the affirmative vote of a majority of the Board of Directors. Any vacancy shall be filled
by the affirmative vote of a majority of the directors, and an officer so chosen shall hold office until the his successor is chosen and qualified.

Section 3. President. The President shall preside at all meetings of stockholders and directors, and shall perform all duties incident to his office and
such other duties as may be prescribed from time to time by these By-Laws or by the Board of Directors.




Section 4. Vice-President. Each Vice-President shall perform such duties as may be prescribed from time to time by these By-Laws or by the Board of
Directors.

Section 5. Secretary. The Secretary shall attend all meetings of the stockholders and Board of Directors, and shall record all proceedings of such
meetings in the Minute Book of the corporation. He shall give proper notice of meetings of stockholders and Board of Directors and other notices required by
law or by these By-Laws. He shall perform all duties incident to his office and such or duties as these By-Laws or the Board of Directors may, from time to
time, prescribe.

Section 6. Treasurer. The Treasurer shall keep correct and complete financial records of the corporation and shall have custody of'the corporate funds,
securities, and other valuable effects of the corporations. He shall deposit all monies and other valuable effects, in the name of the corporation, in such
depositories as may be designated by the Board of Directors. He shall furnish at meetings of the Board of Directors, or whenever requested, a statement of the
financial condition of'the corporation, and shall perform such duties as these By-Laws or the Board of Directors may from time to time prescribe.

Section 7. Salaries. The salaries of all officers shall be fixed by the Board of Directors, and the fact any officer is a Director shall not preclude him from
receiving a salary or from voting upon the resolution providing for the same.

Section 8. Contracts. Except as otherwise provided by the Board of Directors from time to time, all-formal contracts of this corporation shall be
executed on its behalf by the President or any Vice-President.

Article IV

Indemnification

Section 1. Indemnification of Directors, Executive Officers. other officers. Employees and other Agents. The corporation shall indemnify its
directors and executive officers to the fullest extent not prohibited by any applicable law; PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that the corporation may modify the

extent of such indemnification by individual contracts with its directors and executive officers; and, PROVIDED, FURTHER, that the corporation shall not
be required to indemnify any director or executive officer in connection with any proceeding (or part thereof) initiated by such person unless (i) such
indemnification is expressly required to be made by law, (ii ) the proceeding was authorized by the Board of Directors of the corporation, ( iii ) such
indemnification is provided by the corporation, in its sole discretion, pursuant to the powers vested in the corporation under any applicable law. The
corporation shall have power to indemnify its other officers, employees and other agents as set forth in any other applicable law. The Board of Directors shall
have the power to delegate the determination of whether indemnification shall be given to any such person to such officers or other persons as the Board of
Directors shall determine.

Section 2. Expenses. The corporation shall advance to any person who was or is a party or is threatened, pending or completed action, suit of
proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, by reason of the fact that he is or was a director or executive officer, of the corporation,
prior to the final disposition of the proceeding, promptly following request therefore, all expenses incurred by any director or executive officer in connection
with such proceeding; PROVIDED HOWEVER, applicable law requires, an advancement of expenses incurred by the director or executive officer in his
capacity in which service was or is rendered by such indemnitee, Shall be made only upon delivery to the corporation of an undertaking by or on behalf of
such indemnitee, to repay all amounts so advanced if it shall ultimately be determined by final judicial decision from which there is no further right to appeal
that such indemnitee is not entitled to be indemnified for such expenses. Notwithstanding the foregoing, unless otherwise determined, no advance shall be
made by the corporation to an officer of the corporation (except by reason




ofthe fact that such officer is or was a director of the corporation in which event this paragraph shall not apply) in any action, suit or proceeding, whether
civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, if a determination is reasonably and promptly made (i) by a majority vote of directors who not parties to the
proceeding, even if not a quorum, or (ii ) by a committee of such directors designated by a majority vote of such directors, even though less than a quorum, or
(iii ) if there are no such directors, or such directors so direct, by independent legal council in a written opinion, that the facts known to the decision making
party at the time such determination is made demonstrate clearly and convincingly that such person acted in bad faith or in a manner that such person did not
believe to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the corporation.

Section 3. Enforcement. Without the necessity of entering into an express contract, all rights to indemnification and advances to directors and
executive officers shall be deemed to be contractual rights and to be effective to the same extent and as if provided for in a contract between the corporation
and the director or executive officer. Any right to indemnification or advances granted to a director or executive officer shall be enforceable by or on behalf
of'the person holding such right in any court of competent jurisdiction if (i ) the claim for indemnification or advances is denied, in whole or in part, or (ii )
no disposition of such claim is made within ninety ( 90 ) days of request therefore. The claimant in such enforcement action, if successful in whole or in part,
shall be entitled to be paid also the expense of prosecuting the claim. In connection with any claim for indemnification, the corporation shall be entitled to
raise as a defense to any such action that the claimant has not met the standards of conduct that make it permissible under applicable law for the corporation
to indemnify the claimant for the amount claimed. In connection with any claim by an executive officer of the corporation (except in any action, suit or
proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, by reason of the fact that such executive officer is or was a director of the corporation) for
advances, the corporation shall be entitled to raise a defense as to any such action clear and convincing evidence that such person acted in bad faith orin a
manner that such person did not believe to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the corporation, or with respect to any criminal action or proceeding
that such person acted without reasonable cause to believe that his conduct was lawful. Neither the failure of the corporation (including its Board of
Directors, independent legal counsel or its stockholders) to have made a determination prior to the commencement of such action that indemnification of the
claimant is proper in the circumstances because he has met the applicable standard of conduct set forth in applicable law, nor an actual determination by the
corporation (including its Board of Directors, independent legal counsel or its stockholders) that the claimant has not met such applicable standard of
conduct, shall be a defense to the action or create a presumption that claimant has not met the applicable standard of conduct.

Section 4. Non-Exclusivity of Rights. The rights conferred on any person by this By-Law shall not be exclusive of any other right which such person
may have or hereafter acquire under any applicable statute, provision of the Certificate of Incorporation, By-Laws, agreement, vote of stockholders or
disinterested directors or otherwise, both as to action in his official capacity and as to action in another capacity while holding office. The corporation is
specifically authorized to enter into individual contracts with any or all of its directors, officers, employees or agents respecting indemnification and
advances, to the fullest extent not prohibited by applicable law.

Section 5. Survival of rights. The rights conferred on any person by this By-Law shall continue as to a person who has ceased top be a director or
executive officer and shall inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors and administrators of such a person.

Section 6. Amendments. Any repeal or modification shall only be prospective and shall not effect the rights under this By-Law in effect at the time of
the alleged occurrence of any action or omission to act that is the cause of any proceeding against any agent of the corporation.

Section 7. Insurance. To the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, the corporation, upon approval by the Board of Directors, may purchase
insurance on behalf of any person required or permitted to be indemnified by this ARTICLE IV.




Section 8. Saving Clause. If this ARTICLE IV or any portion hereof shall be invalidated on any ground by any court of competent jurisdiction, then the
corporation shall nevertheless indemnify each director and executive officer to the full extent not prohibited by any applicable portion of this ARTICLE IV
that shall not have been invalidated, or by any other applicable law. If this ARTICLE IV shall be invalid due to the application of the indemnification
provisions of another jurisdiction, then the corporation shall indemnify each director and executive officer to the full extent under any other applicable law.

Section 9. Certain Definitions. For the purposes of this By-Law the following definitions shall apply:

(1) The term ““ proceeding” shall be broadly construed and shall include, without limitation, the investigation, preparation, prosecution, defense,
settlement, arbitration and appeal of, and the giving of testimony in, any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil,
criminal, administrative or investigative.

(2) The term”expenses” broadly construed shall include without limitation court costs, attorneys’ fees, witness fees, amounts paid in settlement
or judgment and any other costs and expenses of any nature or kind incurred in connection with any proceeding.

(3) The term “corporation” shall include, in addition to the resulting corporation, any constituent corporation (including any constituent)
absorbed in a consolidation or merger which, if its separate existence had continued, would have had the power and authority to indemnify its
directors, officers, and employees or agents, so that any person who is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of such constituent corporation, or
is or was serving at the request of such constituent corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint
venture, trust or other enterprise, shall stand in the same position under the provisions of this ARTICLE IV with respect to the resulting or surviving
corporation as he would have with respect to such constituent corporation if its separate existence had continued.

2 2 ”

(4) References to a “director,” “executive officer,” “officer,” “employee” or “agent” of the corporation shall include, without limitation,
situations where such person is serving at the request of the corporation as, respectively, a director, executive officer, officer, employee, trustee or
agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise.

(5) References to “other enterprises” shall include employee benefit plans; references to “fines” shall include any excise taxes assessed on a
person with respect to an employee benefit plan; and references to “serving at the request of the corporation” shall include any service as a director,
officer, employee or agent of the corporation which imposes duties on, or involves services by, such director, officer, employee or agent with respect
to an employee benefit plan, its participants and beneficiaries; of an employee benefit plan shall be deemed to have acted in a manner “not opposed
to the best interests of the corporation” as referred to in this ARTICLE IV.

ARTICLE V

Capital Stock

Section 1. Issuance of Stock. The capital stock, including both authorized but previously issued shares, as well as treasury shares, may be issued for
such consideration, not less than par value thereofin the case of shares having par value, as shall be fixed from time to time by the Board of Directors.




Section 2. Transfer of Shares. The shares of the corporation shall be transferable on the books of the corporation only upon the surrender of each
certificate representing the same, properly endorsed by the registered holder or by his duly authorized attorney, or with separate written assignment
accompanying the certificate.

Section 3. Certificates of stock. Certificates signed by the President or any Vice-President and by the Secretary or any assistant Secretary of the
corporation. shall represent the shares of the corporation, and all such signatures may be facsimiles thereof. The certificates shall be in such form as shall be
approved by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE VI
Miscellaneous

Section 1. Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the corporation shall begin on the first day of January of each year and end on the thirty-first day of December.
ARTICLE VII

Amendments

These By-Laws may be altered, amended, or repealed by the Board of Directors subject to the power of the stockholders, by the affirmative vote of a
majority of the stockholders entitled to vote, at any meeting, to change or repeal such By-Laws, provided that notice of such proposed amendment
shall have been given in the notice of such meeting. The Board of Directors shall not make or alter any By-Laws fixing their number, qualifications,
or term of office.

/s/ Lawrence W. Gadbaw
Lawrence W. Gadbaw, President and CEO

/s/ Gerald D. Rice
Gerald D. Rice, Vice-President, Secretary and Treasurer

Dated: April 23,2002

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the original By-Laws of BIODRAIN MEDICAL, INC., which is on record in the minute
book of the corporation.

/s/ Gerald D. Rice
Gerald D. Rice, Secretary




On May 26,2010, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of BioDrain Medical, Inc. (the “Company”), acting pursuant to the authority granted by Article VII of
the Company’s By-Laws, as amended (the “By-Laws”), and Article X of the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, as amended (the “Articles”), unanimously
approved an amendment to Article I Section 5 of the Company’s By-Laws to change the manner in which the record date for shareholder meetings is

fixed. Article I Section 5 of the By-Laws previously provided that the record date would be the day, which was twenty (20) days prior to the date of a meeting
of'shareholders. Article I Section 5 now provides that the Board may fix a record date that shall be at least ten (10) but not more than sixty (60) days prior to
the date of a meeting of the Company’s shareholders.

The above summary is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the Amendment to the By-Laws that follows.




Amendment
of the
By-Laws
of
BioDrain Medical, Inc.

Article I Section 5 of the By-Laws is hereby amended to read in its entirety as follows:

“Section 5 . Voting Rights. Every holder ofrecord, as provided below, of Common Stock shall be entitled to vote, in person or by proxy executed in
writing and delivered to the Secretary at or before the meeting, and he shall be entitled to one vote for each share standing in his name; provided that no
proxy shall be voted if executed more than one year prior to the date of such meeting except as may otherwise be provided by the Board of Directors from
time to time. The Board of Directors may fix a date at least ten (10) but not exceeding sixty (60) days preceding the date of any meeting of the stockholders
of the Company, as a record date for the determination of the stockholders entitled to notice of and to vote at such meeting, and in such case only
stockholders of record on the date so fixed or their legal representatives shall be entitled to notice of and to vote at such meeting.”




Exhibit31.1
CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Kevin R. Davidson, certify that:

1.

I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of BioDrain Medical, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principals;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: November 12,2010 /s/ Kevin R. Davidson

Kevin R. Davidson
Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer)




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Kevin R. Davidson, certify that:

1.

2.

I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of BioDrain Medical, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principals;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: November 12,2010 /s/ Kevin R. Davidson

Kevin R. Davidson
Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer)




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of BioDrain Medical, Inc. (the “Company”) for the quarter ended September 30,2010 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Report”), I, Kevin R. Davidson, Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer) and Chief
Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer) of the Company, hereby certify as of the date hereof, solely for purposes of § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, 18 U.S.C. § 1350, that to the best of my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and

(2)  The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company at the dates and for the periods indicated.

Date: November 12,2010 /s/ Kevin R. Davidson
Kevin R. Davidson
Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer) and
Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer)
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